
 

 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and 
 

Commissioning 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 
The Democracy Service 
 

Civic Centre 3 
 

High Street 
 

Huddersfield 
 

HD1 2TG 
 

Tel: 01484 221000  
 

Please ask for: Jenny Bryce-Chan 
 

Email: jenny.bryce-chan@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

Tuesday 21 January 2020 
 

Notice of Meeting 
 
Dear Member 
 

Cabinet Committee - Local Issues 
 

The Cabinet Committee - Local Issues will meet in the Leadership Meeting 
Room  - 1st Floor, Civic Centre 3, Huddersfield, HD1 2TG at 12.30 pm on 

Wednesday 29 January 2020. 
 
The items which will be discussed are described in the agenda and there are reports 
attached which give more details. 
 
 

 
 

Julie Muscroft 
 

Service Director – Legal, Governance and Commissioning 
 
 
Kirklees Council advocates openness and transparency as part of its democratic 
processes. Anyone wishing to record (film or audio) the public parts of the meeting should 
inform the Chair/Clerk of their intentions prior to the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 

The Cabinet Committee - Local Issues members are:- 
 

 
 
 
 
 

Member 
Councillor Peter McBride 
Councillor Naheed Mather 
Councillor Graham Turner 
 



 

 

 

Agenda 
Reports or Explanatory Notes Attached 

 

 
  Pages 

 

1:   Membership of the Committee 
 
This is where councillors who are attending as substitutes will say for 
who they are attending. 
 

 
 

 

2:   Minutes of Previous Meeting 
 
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of the Committee held on 25 
September 2019. 
 

 
 

1 - 2 

3:   Interests 
 
The Councillors will be asked to say if there are any items on the 
Agenda in which they have disclosable pecuniary interests, which 
would prevent them from participating in any discussion of the items 
or participating in any vote upon the items, or any other interests. 
 

 
 

3 - 4 

4:   Admission of the Public 
 
Most debates take place in public. This only changes when there is a 
need to consider certain issues, for instance, commercially sensitive 
information or details concerning an individual. You will be told at 
this point whether there are any items on the Agenda which are to 
be discussed in private 
 

 
 

 

5:   Deputations/Petitions 
 
The Committee will receive any petitions and hear any deputations 
from members of the public. A deputation is where up to five people 
can attend the meeting and make a presentation on some particular 
issue of concern. A member of the public can also hand in a petition 
at the meeting but that petition should relate to something on which 
the body has powers and responsibilities. 
 
In accordance with Council Procedure Rule 10 (2), Members of the 

 



 

 

Public should provide at least 24 hours’ notice of presenting a 
deputation.   
 

 
 

6:   Public Question Time 
 
The Committee will hear any questions from the general public. 
 

 
 

 

7:   Member Question Time 
 
To receive questions from Councillors.  
 

 
 

 

8:   Objections to TRO (No.9) Order 2019 - A636 Wakefield 
Rd / Pennine Way, Scisset 
 
To consider objections received to the above advertised Traffic 
Regulation Order.  Objections to Kirklees TRO No 9 Order 2019, 
Proposed No Waiting at Any Time restrictions, at the junction of 
A636 Wakefield Road / Pennine Way, Scissett and the introduction 
of traffic calming in the form of road humps on Pennine Way, 
Scissett. 
 
 
Wards affected:  Denby Dale 
 
Contact:  Jonathan Walsh, Principal Engineer, Tel: 01484 221000 
 

 
 

5 - 28 

 
 



 

1 
 

Contact Officer: Jenny Bryce-Chan  
 

KIRKLEES COUNCIL 
 

CABINET COMMITTEE - LOCAL ISSUES 
 

Wednesday 25th September 2019 
 
Present: Councillor Peter McBride (Chair) 
 Councillor Naheed Mather 

Councillor Graham Turner 
  

1 Membership of the Committee 
RESOLVED - All members were present. 
 

2 Minutes of Previous Meeting 
RESOLVED - That the minutes of the meeting held on the 9th April 2019 be 
approved as a correct record. 
 

3 Interests 
No interest were declared. 
 

4 Admission of the Public 
That all agenda items be considered in public session. 
 

5 Deputations/Petitions 
No deputations or petitions were received. 
 

6 Public Question Time 
No questions were asked. 
 

7 Member Question Time 
No questions were asked. 
 

8 Objections to proposed Traffic Regulation No 4 Order 2019, No Waiting at Any 
Time - South St and Warren St, Saville Town 
The Committee considered a report which outlined objections received in response 
to the public advertisement of Kirklees (TR) (No 4) Order 2019, the proposed 
introduction of additional ‘No Waiting At Any Time’ parking restrictions on South 
Street and Warrant Street Savile Town. 
 
The Committee was advised that Planning permission was granted for “Demolition 
of the existing building and the erection of a 3 storey educational facility, at South 
Street. The approval proposed that as part of the planning conditions, the provision 
of ‘drop off and pick up’ zones on South Street must be provided. The Committee 
was informed that a ‘drop off and pick up’ zone cannot be implemented, as there are 
no legal mechanisms to do so and therefore for that reason, it was proposed to use 
double yellow lines to facilitate this requirement. In response to the advertised order, 
45 objections were received.   
 

Page 1

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet Committee - Local Issues -  25 September 2019 
 

2 
 

The Committee was informed that the restrictions were necessary to ensure safety, 
and to reduce risk to children accessing the centre. In addition, efforts were being 
made to work with the ward councillors to manage traffic and traffic flow problems. 
Local councillors have also asked for enforcement to be carried out in the area. 
 
The Committee heard representations from local residents who questioned the 
rational for granting planning approval for a building with no parking facilities. They 
expressed concern that the approval of this building would do nothing to ease the 
congestion as the centre would attract people from outside the area and would 
further exacerbate the situation and create a backlog of traffic and severely affect 
local residents’ ability to park outside their own homes.   
 
The Committee recognised that this is a high density area however the authority’s 
primary concern is to improve safety. The introduction of the scheme would reduce 
congestions in the area, improve visibility and access at and around the junction 
where child pedestrian accidents had previously been recorded.   
 
Officers made a commitment to talk to the Mosques to reinforce what was 
previously agreed with regard to managing the traffic. 
 
RESOLVED - That the objections be overruled and the TRO proposals are 
implemented as advertised, to allow the approved planning conditions to be 
discharged with regard to the drop and go zone and allow the previously approved 
waiting restrictions on Warren Street to be implemented 
 
 

Page 2



K
IR

K
LE

ES
 C

O
U

N
C

IL
 

C
O

U
N

C
IL

/C
A

B
IN

ET
/C

O
M

M
IT

TE
E 

M
EE

TI
N

G
S 

ET
C

 
D

EC
LA

R
A

TI
O

N
 O

F 
IN

TE
R

ES
TS

 
 

N
am

e 
of

 C
ou

nc
ill

or
 

Ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
an

 
in

te
re

st
 

 

Ty
pe

 o
f i

nt
er

es
t (

eg
 a

 
di

sc
lo

sa
bl

e 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

 o
r a

n 
“O

th
er

 
In

te
re

st
”)

 

 

D
oe

s 
th

e 
na

tu
re

 o
f t

he
 

in
te

re
st

 re
qu

ire
 y

ou
 to

 
w

ith
dr

aw
 fr

om
 th

e 
m

ee
tin

g 
w

hi
le

 th
e 

ite
m

 in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

 
ha

ve
 a

n 
in

te
re

st
 is

 u
nd

er
 

co
ns

id
er

at
io

n?
  [

Y/
N

] 

 

B
rie

f d
es

cr
ip

tio
n 

of
 y

ou
r 

in
te

re
st

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

  

 
 

 

 Si
gn

ed
:  

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

   
   

   
D

at
ed

:  
  …

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
.. 

Page 3

Agenda Item 3



N
O

TE
S 

D
is

cl
os

ab
le

 P
ec

un
ia

ry
 In

te
re

st
s 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 o

f t
he

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
pe

cu
ni

ar
y 

in
te

re
st

s,
 th

ey
 a

re
 y

ou
r d

is
cl

os
ab

le
 p

ec
un

ia
ry

 in
te

re
st

s 
un

de
r t

he
 n

ew
 n

at
io

na
l r

ul
es

. A
ny

 re
fe

re
nc

e 
to

 
sp

ou
se

 o
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 in

cl
ud

es
 a

ny
 p

er
so

n 
w

ith
 w

ho
m

 y
ou

 a
re

 li
vi

ng
 a

s 
hu

sb
an

d 
or

 w
ife

, o
r a

s 
if 

th
ey

 w
er

e 
yo

ur
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
.  

 A
ny

 e
m

pl
oy

m
en

t, 
of

fic
e,

 tr
ad

e,
 p

ro
fe

ss
io

n 
or

 v
oc

at
io

n 
ca

rr
ie

d 
on

 fo
r p

ro
fit

 o
r g

ai
n,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, u

nd
er

ta
ke

s.
  

A
ny

 p
ay

m
en

t o
r p

ro
vi

si
on

 o
f a

ny
 o

th
er

 fi
na

nc
ia

l b
en

ef
it 

(o
th

er
 th

an
 fr

om
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y)
 m

ad
e 

or
 p

ro
vi

de
d 

w
ith

in
 th

e 
re

le
va

nt
 p

er
io

d 
in

 
re

sp
ec

t o
f a

ny
 e

xp
en

se
s 

in
cu

rr
ed

 b
y 

yo
u 

in
 c

ar
ry

in
g 

ou
t d

ut
ie

s 
as

 a
 m

em
be

r, 
or

 to
w

ar
ds

 y
ou

r e
le

ct
io

n 
ex

pe
ns

es
.  

 A
ny

 c
on

tra
ct

 w
hi

ch
 is

 m
ad

e 
be

tw
ee

n 
yo

u,
 o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
 (o

r a
 b

od
y 

in
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
as

 
a 

be
ne

fic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t) 
an

d 
yo

ur
 c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y 
-  

• 
un

de
r w

hi
ch

 g
oo

ds
 o

r s
er

vi
ce

s 
ar

e 
to

 b
e 

pr
ov

id
ed

 o
r w

or
ks

 a
re

 to
 b

e 
ex

ec
ut

ed
; a

nd
  

• 
w

hi
ch

 h
as

 n
ot

 b
ee

n 
fu

lly
 d

is
ch

ar
ge

d.
  

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t i

n 
la

nd
 w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

, h
av

e 
an

d 
w

hi
ch

 is
 w

ith
in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y.
  

 A
ny

 li
ce

nc
e 

(a
lo

ne
 o

r j
oi

nt
ly

 w
ith

 o
th

er
s)

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

ol
ds

 to
 o

cc
up

y 
la

nd
 in

 th
e 

ar
ea

 o
f y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 
au

th
or

ity
 fo

r a
 m

on
th

 o
r l

on
ge

r. 
 

 A
ny

 te
na

nc
y 

w
he

re
 (t

o 
yo

ur
 k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 - 

th
e 

la
nd

lo
rd

 is
 y

ou
r c

ou
nc

il 
or

 a
ut

ho
rit

y;
 a

nd
 th

e 
te

na
nt

 is
 a

 b
od

y 
in

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r 

ci
vi

l p
ar

tn
er

, h
as

 a
 b

en
ef

ic
ia

l i
nt

er
es

t. 
 

 A
ny

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t w

hi
ch

 y
ou

, o
r y

ou
r s

po
us

e 
or

 y
ou

r c
iv

il 
pa

rtn
er

 h
as

 in
 s

ec
ur

iti
es

 o
f a

 b
od

y 
w

he
re

 - 
 

(a
) t

ha
t b

od
y 

(to
 y

ou
r k

no
w

le
dg

e)
 h

as
 a

 p
la

ce
 o

f b
us

in
es

s 
or

 la
nd

 in
 th

e 
ar

ea
 o

f y
ou

r c
ou

nc
il 

or
 a

ut
ho

rit
y;

 a
nd

  
(b

) e
ith

er
 - 

 
 

th
e 

to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ec

ur
iti

es
 e

xc
ee

ds
 £

25
,0

00
 o

r o
ne

 h
un

dr
ed

th
 o

f t
he

 to
ta

l i
ss

ue
d 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t 

bo
dy

; o
r  

 
if 

th
e 

sh
ar

e 
ca

pi
ta

l o
f t

ha
t b

od
y 

is
 o

f m
or

e 
th

an
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

, t
he

 to
ta

l n
om

in
al

 v
al

ue
 o

f t
he

 s
ha

re
s 

of
 a

ny
 o

ne
 c

la
ss

 in
 

w
hi

ch
 y

ou
, o

r y
ou

r s
po

us
e 

or
 y

ou
r c

iv
il 

pa
rtn

er
, h

as
 a

 b
en

ef
ic

ia
l i

nt
er

es
t e

xc
ee

ds
 o

ne
 h

un
dr

ed
th

 o
f t

he
 to

ta
l i

ss
ue

d 
sh

ar
e 

ca
pi

ta
l o

f t
ha

t c
la

ss
.  

 

Page 4



 
 
Name of meeting:  Cabinet Committee - Local Issues  
Date:  29th January 2020 
  
Title of report: Objections to Kirklees TRO No 9 Order 2019, Proposed No Waiting at Any 
Time restrictions, at the junction of A636 Wakefield Road / Pennine Way, Scissett and the 
introduction of traffic calming in the form of road humps on Pennine Way, Scissett      
 
Purpose of report: To consider objections received to the above advertised Traffic 
Regulation Order. 
 
Key Decision - Is it likely to result in 
spending or saving £250k or more, or to 
have a significant effect on two or more 
electoral wards?  
 

No 
 

Key Decision - Is it in the Council’s Forward 
Plan (key decisions and private reports?)  
 

No 

The Decision - Is it eligible for call in by 
Scrutiny? 
 

Yes 
 

Date signed off by Strategic Director & 
name 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
Finance? 
 
Is it also signed off by the Service Director 
for Legal Governance and Commissioning? 
 

 Karl Battersby - 13.01.2020 
 
 
Eamonn Croston - 10.01.2020 
 
 
Julie Muscroft - 10.01.2020 

Cabinet member portfolio 
 

Councillor Rob Walker  

 
Electoral wards affected: Denby Dale  
 
Ward councillors consulted: Yes  
 
Public or private: Public    
 
Has GDPR been considered: Yes 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 8

https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgListPlans.aspx?RPId=139&RD=0
https://democracy.kirklees.gov.uk/mgCommitteeDetails.aspx?ID=139


 
 

1. Summary  
 
To consider objections received in response the public advertisement of Kirklees (TR) 
(No 9) Order 2019 - The proposed introduction of additional ‘No Waiting at Any Time’ 
parking restrictions on A636 Wakefield Road / Pennine Way, Scissett and the public 
advertisement of the proposal to introduce 3 no. road humps on Pennine Way, 
Scissett. 

 
 Pursuing the implementation of these parking restrictions and traffic calming proposals 

were a condition on a Planning Application.  
 

2. Information required to take a decision 
 
The restrictions on Wakefield Road/Pennine Way, Scissett and the introduction of 3 
road humps on Pennine Way contained in Traffic Regulation Order (TRO), have been 
proposed in connection with Planning Application Number – 2013/93441. Planning 
permission was granted for “erection of residential development of up to 200 dwellings 
and associated works including demolition of existing farm building” at land adj Pilling 
Lane/Holly Road/Langley Lane/ Riverside, Scissett, Huddersfield, HD8 9JF/ 
 
The approval proposed that, as part of the planning conditions, traffic calming and 
safety improvements are required to Pennine Way and its junction with Wakefield 
Road. (Appendix 1) 
 
These included: 
 

 Construction of 3 no. road humps and a new section of footway on Pennine Way; 

 Alterations to the junction of Pennine Way and Wakefield Road to improve 
visibility; 

 Propose the installation of sections of double yellow lines (no waiting at any time) 
to ensure the safe operation of the junction.  

 
These documents can also be viewed online at the Planning Services website at 
www.kirklees.gov.uk/planning.  
 
The developer has committed, through a Section 278 Agreement, to implement these 
improvements work prior to the development being occupied, to maximise the safety 
benefits this will bring at this busy junction. 
 

The TRO proposals (Appendix 2) were publicly advertised between 2 August 2019 
and 3 September 2019, and during that period 2 objections were received. (Appendix 
3)  
 
The first from a resident of Pennine Way, Scissett  
 
Although the resident on Pennine Way supports the improvements to the exit onto 
Wakefield Road, they object to the proposed traffic calming measures on Pennine 
Way due to the following points: 
 

 There will be an increase in pollution as vehicles slow down then speed up 
again to negotiate the bumps 

 An increase in noise and vibration to adjacent properties 

 Delivery vehicles don’t slow down for these bumps 

 Some private users don’t slow down Page 6

http://www.kirklees.gov.uk/planning


 In winter when covered in snow they increase the chance of not being able to 
navigate the slope 

 Emergency Vehicles suffer problems with these bumps 

 Increase in wear and tear to vehicle suspension systems 

 Would a 20mph limit be better on the estate 
 

In response: 
 
Traffic calming by the use of road humps is a proven method of reducing speed and is 
used throughout the district in similar circumstances. The humps proposed have a 
relatively shallow gradient with a flat top which will act as a physical and visual 
deterrent to speeding vehicles. The spacing of the humps is set to keep speeds low 
and to encourage people to drive appropriately for the location. (20mph limits would 
also require physical features to ensure that they are self-enforcing). 
 
If the humps are driven over correctly they will have no detrimental effect on vehicles 
and there is no evidence of any increase in noise levels associated with lighter 
vehicles (cars and vans up to 3.5t) as this is offset by the reduction in speed. With 
regards to any increased vibration this is usually associated with larger vehicles and it 
is anticipated these will be kept to a minimum as it is not intended to install the road 
humps until all construction traffic has ceased. 
 
As part of the consultation we have also carried out consultation with our ‘statutory’ 
consultees that include the police / fire and ambulance service and have received no 
adverse comments from them regarding the proposals. 
 
The second from a resident of Pennine Rise, Scissett 

 
The resident is concerned that the proposed parking restrictions are shorter than the 
standard visibility splay length and this will continue to reduce visibility for drivers 
exiting from the junction. 
 
In response 
 
Although the visibility splay may occasionally be compromised by parked vehicles, the 
visibility to the oncoming traffic will still be in excess of the minimum 40m required. 
 
It is felt that the current proposal provides an adequate balance of safety and visibility 
without putting too onerous a restriction on the current level of on-street parking 
provision for residents.  

 
3. Implications for the Council 

 
3.1 Working with people - The proposed works were considered necessary at 

planning application stage and approved by Planning Committee. These 
proposals are to mitigate the impact of the development on the highway network. 

 
3.2 Working with Partners – Not applicable 

 
3.3  Place based Working – This is a local solution aimed at improving the highway 

network for local people. 
 
3.4 Climate Change and Air Quality – These proposals will not have a detrimental 

impact on Air Quality or Climate Change. 
 
3.5 Improving outcomes for children- These proposals are aimed at reducing the 

speeds traffic can achieve on entering and travelling within a residential area   Page 7



 
3.6 Other - If the TRO is not implemented, it is likely the benefits of reducing speeds 

on Pennine Way and improving safety and visibility at the junction Pennine 
Way/Wakefield Road will not be achieved.  

 
4. Consultees and their opinions 

 
 Statutory consultees have been consulted on these proposals and no objections have 
 been received 
 
 The Denby Dale Ward Councillors have been consulted on the proposals and are 
 supportive of the scheme, with the request the scheme is implemented as soon as 
 possible. 
  

Cllr Turner responded:  
 

  “I have no comments on the actual plan other than, it was part of the granted planning 
 permission, and am supportive of the proposals.   
 
 What I would like to see is the proposals done sooner than next year, especially the 
 double yellow lines, as the access onto the A636 from the estate  is not good, and I 
 am sure the residents would appreciate this.” 
 
5. Next steps and timelines 
 

Cabinet Committee Local Issues to consider the objections raised during the formal 
advertising period for the introduction of traffic calming and the installation of waiting 
restrictions and the information contained in this report, and reach a decision on 
whether or not the traffic calming and TRO are implemented as advertised 
 

6. Officer recommendations and reasons 
 

That the objections be overruled, and the traffic calming and TRO proposals are 
implemented, as advertised, to allow the approved planning conditions to be 
discharged, and allow improvements to a local road junction that is to become busier 
as a result of building new homes 
 

7. Cabinet portfolio holder’s recommendations 
 

Cllr Walker supports the local Ward Councillors and the Officer recommendation.  
 

8. Contact officer  
 
Jonathan Walsh -  
Principal Engineer 
(01484) 221000 
jonathan.walsh@kirklees.gov.uk 
 

9. Background Papers and History of Decisions 
 
 Planning Application Number – 2013/93441 
 
10. Service Director responsible   
 

Sue Procter - 
Service Director - Environment 
(01484) 221000 
sue.procter@kirklees.gov.uk 

Page 8

mailto:jonathan.walsh@kirklees.gov.uk
mailto:sue.procter@kirklees.gov.uk


 
 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



Page 14



Page 15



Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



Page 24



P
age 25



P
age 26



Page 27



Page 28


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of Previous Meeting
	3 Interests
	8 Objections to TRO (No.9) Order 2019 - A636 Wakefield Rd / Pennine Way, Scisset
	Appendix 1 - Planning permission 2013-93441
	Appendix 2 - Plans
	Appendix 3 - Objections


